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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – DECEMBER 22, 2009

(Time Noted – 7:02 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of the Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions it may have and then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all of the Public Hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. The Board will then consider the applications in the order heard. The Board will try to render a decision on all applications this evening; but may take up to 62 days to reach a determination. I would ask if you have a cell phone to please turn the cell phone off so that we would not be interrupted. And also when speaking, speak directly into the microphone because it is being recorded. And I'd like to point out that all Members of the Board have visited all of the sites that we will be discussing this evening. Roll call please. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY









DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

ALSO PRESENT: 
BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

ABSENT: GERALD CANFIELD, FIRE INSPECTOR 


      JOSEPH MATTINA, CODE COMPIANCE 

(Time Noted – 7:04 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 22, 2009             (Time Noted – 7:04 PM) 



JOHN MASTEN



18 BARN VIEW LANE, WALLKILL







(4-1-66) R/R ZONE 

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yard setback to build a front deck on the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant John D. Masten.               

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday December 9th and The Sentinel on Friday, November 11th. The applicant sent out six registered letters, six were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. just for the record state your name and address. 

Mr. Masten: John Masten, 18 Barn View Lane.

Chairperson Cardone: And state your request please.

Mr. Masten: I'm requesting an additional 9-feet on my right side of my property so I could put up the new deck replacing the existing 4 x 4. 

Mr. McKelvey: You've already removed the porch that you're replacing?

Mr. Masten: Pardon?

Mr. McKelvey: The porch that you are going to replace is already been removed? 

Mr. Masten: Yes. I've moved it and the concrete pad up and just drop it in.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes, all right. We have pictures.

Chairperson Cardone: The report from the Orange County Department of Planning states Local Determination. Do we have any questions from the Board?  

Mr. Donovan: Just for purposes of clarification the extra 9-feet doesn't encroach into your side yard? You're not…you're 41-feet so you're short of the requirement of 50-feet but the deck is not coming any closer than the 41-feet correct?

Mr. Masten: Right.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Maher: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 7:07 PM)

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 22, 2009          (Resumption for decision: 8:15 PM) 



JOHN MASTEN



18 BARN VIEW LANE, WALLKILL







(4-1-66) R/R ZONE 

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yard setback to build a front deck on the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is ready to resume its regular meeting. On our first application of John Masten, at 18 Barn View Lane, Wallkill seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yard setback to build a front deck on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Eaton: This won't change the character of the neighborhood at all set back from the road. I don't see where it would present any problem.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to approve this application?

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we approve.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY






DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.              

 (Time Noted – 8:16 PM)
ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 22, 2009             (Time Noted – 7:07 PM) 



STEPHEN & ANDREA ANGELONE
357 SOUTH PLANK ROAD, NBGH







(54-3-2,3) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback to keep a prior built rear deck on the residence.   

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Stephen and Andrea Angelone.               

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday December 9th and The Sentinel on Friday, December 11th. The applicant sent out twenty-three registered letters, fifteen were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. O. K. please state your name for the record.

Mr. Angelone: Stephen Angelone.

Chairperson Cardone: And state your request.

Mr. Angelone: I need an area variance for a rear yard setback to meet the a…setback requirements.

Chairperson Cardone: And this deck has already been constructed? 

Mr. Angelone: Yes it has.

Chairperson Cardone: And it was done without a Permit?

Mr. Angelone: Yes it has.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. and the reason for that?

Mr. Angelone: It was…when I bought the house there was many unfinished products…projects and this was one of them so I kind just went ahead and finished it. Didn't realize that there was a problem. 

Ms. Drake: How long ago was it built? 

Mr. Angelone: Well I finished it probably four or five years ago. Maybe more than that.

Chairperson Cardone: The report from the Orange County Department of Planning is Local Determination.

Mr. Maher: How did it become an issue?

Mr. Angelone: Excuse me?

Mr. Maher: How did it become an issue that it is now as far as to why you are before the Board?

Mr. Angelone: Actually I wanted to get rails. I wanted to put rails on the deck because it's pretty much…its on the ground so I…and that's when I guess it was a…into light. 

Chairperson Cardone: When you were putting the rails on you applied for a Building Permit at that time?

Mr. Angelone: For the rails, yeah. Like I figured to put the rails on the deck itself and…

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board?  Any questions or comments from the public? Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Mr. Maher: I’ll make a motion to close.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 8:21 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 22, 2009     (Resumption for decision: 8:16 PM) 



STEPHEN & ANDREA ANGELONE
357 SOUTH PLANK ROAD, NBGH







(54-3-2,3) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback to keep a prior built rear deck on the residence.   

Chairperson Cardone: On the next application of Stephen and Andrea Angelone, 357 South Plank Road, seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback to keep a prior built rear deck on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Any discussion on this? Do we have a motion for approval? 

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for disapproval?

No response.

Mr. Donovan: I would suggest that we need to do something. 

Chairperson Cardone: I would suggest that also. I know that there is concern on the part of the Board that this construction was done without any kind of a Permit.

Mr. Hughes: There also apparently seems to be some litigation going on with applicant and the Town at this point. And I think I'd feel more comfortable holding our decision until we see the outcome of what happens. Counsel?

Mr. Donovan: I'm aware that there's litigation. I don't know if it relates to this deck or not. If it relates to the deck we resolve that issue by granting the variance. If it doesn't relate to the deck then…well we resolve the issue by granting or denying it. If it doesn't related to the deck then it has no issue.

Mr. Angelone: (Inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: Yes. Excuse me. Just pick up the microphone because it has to be recorded. 

Mr. Angelone: Litigation has to do with the fact that I didn't show up for the…the…the meetings so therefore I was in problem for not doing that so that's what that's about. In other words if I get approved or disapproved for this deck the litigation is going to be over. That's only in response to this deck situation. 

Mr. Hughes: What meetings are you referring to? 

Mr. Angelone: Well I didn't show up for …

Mr. Hughes: Is that a Court meeting or a meeting with the Building Department?

Mr. Angelone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Well, one or the other.

Mr. Angelone: In other words I didn't…I didn't… Say that again, Sir.

Mr. Hughes: Is it with the Building Department or the Court you're referring to? The meetings. 

Mr. Angelone: What happened was is the Court…the Building Department wanted me to make some kind of a…a…a…effort to get this deck situation resolved. So I didn't realize it was big deal so I actually was arrested for…yeah, so that's what this is about. So now if you decide to give me…to approve this deck the situation resolves. If you decide not to give it its still resolved as far as that goes. It's only in response because I didn't show up for the Court Hearings because the Building Department wanted to have that situation remedied.

Chairperson Cardone: Because they wanted you to make an application for…

Mr. Angelone: Absolutely.

Chairperson Cardone: …a variance and you neglected to do that.

Mr. Angelone: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: In the meantime you have made the application for the variance.

Mr. Angelone: Right, that's exactly what…what that was all about so that's a response to that so.

Mr. Hughes: Now if my memory serves me right there was a couple of lots behind there where they built one house recently?

Mr. Angelone: There…there is a…I have a fence back there and that is pretty much is the edge of my property.

Mr. Hughes: We were all out on the site.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: That's where the end of the property is?

Mr. Angelone: That's pretty much the edge of my property. Yes. It might be give or take a couple of feet. I really…

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for answering those questions. I have nothing else. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Is that clear to everyone?  Now I will repeat my question. Do we have a motion to approve this application?     

Mr. McKelvey: So moved.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a second?

Ms. Drake: I'll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY






DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.           (Time Noted – 8:21 PM)
ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 22, 2009             (Time Noted – 7:11 PM) 



RAYJAS REALTY CORPORATION
5228-5263 ROUTE 9W, NBGH







(27-2-25) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the 1000 sq. ft. separation requirement from another existing gasoline station to build a gasoline station and convenience store.  

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Rayjas Realty Corporation.                

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday December 9th and The Sentinel on Friday, December 11th. The applicant sent out forty registered letters, twenty-six were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Just state your name for the record.

Mr. Cordisco: Yes, good evening my name is Dominic Cordisco I'm the attorney for the project and I'm from the law firm of Drake, Loeb in New Windsor. It's nice to see you all tonight. I'm here with Greg Shaw the engineer for the project and if it's all right with the Board we'd like to set up some exhibits so we can make a full presentation to the Board. I'm also here with Mr. Jeffrey Rosenberg, he is in back here, he is the principal of Route 9W Carter Associates, which is the applicant in conjunction with Rayjas Realty and is the proposed developer of the site. The reason that we're here tonight is is that we've been referred by the Planning Board. We were before them for site plan approval for the construction for a gas…excuse me, a convenience store and with a gas dispensing facilities which is an allowed use in this particular zone. The location, as Greg will show you, is on Route 9W across from Carter Avenue and as I said it is an allowed use in the zone subject to site plan approval with one restriction. However there is a restriction in the Code relating to motor vehicle service stations that prohibits a service stations from being located closer than 1000-feet from the nearest existing facility. There is also in the Code, it does describe further that service stations which in my mind and I think a fair reading of the Code is really a vehicle service stations in terms of car shops, body shops, something that is going to repair cars also includes gas dispensing facilities. Of course, we're proposing a convenience store that has gas dispensing facilities and so I think its fair to say that we meet that condition that's in the Code in the sense of that's why we're before you seeking a variance. At this time I'd like to turn it over to Mr. Shaw so that he can walk you through the proposal. 

Mr. Shaw: Thank you. Good evening. As Dominic mentioned the parcel is on Route 9W (inaudible) Carter Avenue…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me. Greg, could you either get a little closer to the mic or you could take it off? 

Mr. Shaw: O.K. I'll take off. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you. It won't pick up otherwise. 

Mr. Shaw: Thank you.

Ms. Gennarelli: That's good. 

Mr. Shaw: As I said, it's a 4-acre parcel opposite Carter Avenue on 9W on the east side and it is 4-acres in size. It is located in the B zone and we butt up against a residential zone to the rear of the property. Presently on the site we have three residences, we have a garage, a trailer, a shed and numerous vehicles, tractor-trailers, trailers, construction equipment. I just handed the photographs, which I passed around, and four entrances out onto Route 9W. What we are proposing is to construct a new 8300 sq.ft. convenience store. I hope I grabbed the right thing. And that would be located in the central portion of the property. Of the four entrances would be reduced down to two entrances and in conjunction with the convenience store there would be a gas canopy, which would contain eight gas pump islands. The (inaudible) of the site has received conceptual approval from the Planning Board. We are complying with all setbacks. We have more than enough parking and we are in compliance also with your buffer and setback regulations. With respect to the infrastructure, we are going to be tied into the Town of Newburgh water systems. The building will be sprinklered. We will have an on-site sewage disposal system, which will take care of the wastewater generated by the convenience store, and we will have an on-site storm water detention and treatment system, which will be tied into the State system. One component not indicated on this plan but its something that we're going to begin to look at hopefully, if we receive the variance, is that more than likely we're going to need a left hand turn lane on this project. As you all know the traffic on Route 9W is quite substantial and the first thing we're going to have to do is prepare a traffic study and begin our discussions with our traffic consultant and the D.O.T. as to whether or not a left hand turn lane is warranted and I think we all believe it will be just so that the traffic that passes in front of this project on a daily basis. With respect to this site and the proximity of other gasoline service stations on the Route 9W corridor, I'd like to put up one last exhibit, is other than Stewarts which is immediately across the street there's only two other public gas stations on Route 9W. One is a Mobil Mart which is located at the intersection of 9W and McCall Place and that's 3850 feet from our site, far in excess of the 1000 foot distance and then finally there is a Citgo which is at 9W and Old Post Road and that's in excess of 10,000, in fact almost 11,000 feet from our project site. So those are really the three existing fuel dispensing facilities on Route 9W again immediately across the street, 3850 then finally the one furthest to the North is 10,975. So that is a brief overview of the project and the review of the 9W corridor and I'll throw it back to you Dominic.

Mr. Cordisco: And as Mr. Shaw mentioned, the size of the building is quite substantial although the site itself can clearly support it because we don't require any other variances except for a distance to the nearest gas station which happens to be across the street. The size of the proposal however for the...our convenience store is modeled, we don't have a particular tenant yet but I want to be clear and let the Board know that this is similar to if you are familiar with QuickChek. It is going to be modeled on their design and a…its something that's more akin to a convenience store that sells hot food and deli items in addition to selling gasoline so that we're going to be a larger facility than anything that is in corridor and perhaps be more a convenience stop for travelers along the Route 9W corridor so that they can get hot food and grocery items without having to go all the way down to Shop Rite to do it.      

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board?  

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I have some questions and I have some statements as well. I think I'll start with the statements. There's a lot of water table problems on this entire property here. Are you aware of that Mr. Cordisco?

Mr. Cordisco: I'm the attorney, Mr. Hughes. I would ask Mr. Shaw.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Mr. Shaw, are you aware of the high water table problems that exist on this property?  

Mr. Shaw: We're aware that there's standing water to a ditch that really does not have an outlet along the rear of the property it would not equate that as having a high water table you just have standing water viz a viz the ditch which is from water draining off of Albany Post Road. 

Mr. Hughes: Well then I'll take that as you not being informed well enough with the property and I am. I have a project going on right close by there and there's complaints all the time. There is no Town sewage system there and I see you have quite a large area that indicates that it is reserved for sewage disposal system and it is right in the area that I'm talking about where there's a lot of water problems. But before we get into that let me read something from our Town Code and that's why you're here. And I don't quite agree with what Mr. Cordisco had to say about one way or the other I think its almost the same stroke. And what it says is this, the accumulative effect of all curb cuts for any such new use shall also be considered and in no instance shall a new motor vehicle service station or any other establishment dispensing gasoline be permitted to be established within a 1000 feet in any direction from a lot on which there is an existing motor vehicle station or other establishment dispensing gasoline. So I have some questions too. I see several different names on several different checks and I'm under the impression by that effect that your applicant is not the owner of the property at present?

Mr. Cordisco: He is the contract purchaser.

Mr. Hughes: He is the contract purchaser?

Mr. Cordisco: Correct. 

Mr. Hughes: So this is all contingent?

Mr. Cordisco: I'm not familiar with the terms of the contract Mr. Hughes.

Mr. Hughes: But you're the attorney?

Mr. Cordisco: Well I am…well I am attorney for this particular application.

Mr. Hughes: I see.

Mr. Cordisco: Yes. And we do have the proper…excuse me, the proxy of the property owner.

Mr. Hughes: I didn't see that. I didn't see the proxy from the owner. Maybe it was omitted from my packet but I noticed that that was remiss as well. Back to 185-28-g, if you would like to read what I just read into the record and I'd like my colleagues to read that as well. Back to the water problem, Mr. Shaw, I don't know how you're going to overcome this. It's quite a pronounced situation there and everybody of the Town and the Building Department as well is quite well aware of that as well as all of the neighbors. Just quite recently there's been some problems with road drainage, which the Town contributed to some of the situation that exists there and NYS D.O.T., as well. And upon request they've been out to try and straighten out the mess that exists along there and they didn't do too well. So that's all that I have to say for now just to let you know how I feel about this and some of the existing conditions that you may not be aware of cooperatively. 

Mr. Shaw: May I add that it's early, very early on in this project. If the water conditions are what you say they are we certainly can bring in fill and raise it. With respect to the sewage disposal system area it doesn't necessarily have to be an in-ground system. It very well could be a sewage treatment plant. So there are a lot of options available to us but there's no sense really delving into them unless we receive the variance and that is something that if we are successful when we return back to the Planning Board all those issues discussed will be on the table and then some. 

Mr. Hughes: I'd be reluctant to issue a variance without all those other details worked out. That kind of almost puts you in the position where we're helping you go along with something that shouldn't be. By condoning such a situation, I myself don't feel comfortable operating under that fashion. I have nothing else at this time.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for answering those questions gentlemen. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions or comments from the Board?

Mr. Maher: Do you have any examples where it's been…this has been…a variance has been given in the Town currently in the same or similar situation?

Mr. Cordisco: No, I do not.

Mr. Donovan: If I could just speak to the issue a little bit because I will tell you when I first read this, when I saw the application its not…this is a not a common Code provision. So in my mind you analyze why do we have it? Because there's legitimate reasons for legislation and then there's not so legitimate reasons for legislation. A not so legitimate reason would be we want to limit the number of gas stations so we do it by a provision like this in the Code. That would not be legitimate you would zone gas stations so not permit them in that district. A legitimate reason could be, because I researched and spent not a lot of time but some time, are there any cases that have addressed issues similar to this with gas stations and I don't know if Dominic if you took a look at that but I came across a case from 1961 not particularly recent but 1961 where a similar co provision was upheld for the purpose that there not be too much fuel in the ground so there would be a potentially hazardous situation. The court at that time found at that time to be a legitimate objective. The objective here if I read this correctly, appears to be traffic because it talks about the Board shall consider the potential interference with or danger to traffic on all abutting streets and the accumulative in fact what Ron read before of all curb cuts shall also be considered. So I don't know whether Domenic or Mr. Shaw can speak to that issue because it seems to me that the objective here is one of traffic which I think would be…you know on one hand it is a legitimate objective on the other hand I have to tell you that's typically…a traffic study is done by the Planning Board not for the Zoning Board. But we have the law before us and that's what it says and maybe if you could speak a little bit to the traffic issue because that seems to be in my view the objective sought to be achieved by this provision of the Code.

Mr. Cordisco: I would agree with that Mr. Donovan and we did take a look at this particular issue because when I first came across it and realized that we were going to require a variance for this you're right this a very odd provision. It's basically a setback and you would seem on its face that's its designed to minimize competition so that you don't have too many motor vehicle service stations or gas stations located within a certain area. And then I took a look at the case law and actually prepared a memo and I'm happy to share that with the Board on that particular issue. And in addition to the 1961 case there's some even older cases that go back that say that it's not proper for the Board or the Town to be restricting competition for that reason. Nor more appropriately the Board should be focused on public health, safety and welfare. Of course, traffic falls within that umbrella of issues and as Mr. Shaw mentioned we are proposing to put in a left hand turn lane. I'll let him speak further about that. But that is definitely part of the application to alleviate traffic concerns along that area. I don't think that it would be a proper consideration for the Board and I'm happy to share that memo with you that just because we have a competitor across the street would be an appropriate basis to deny our particular application. Our facility is going to be a state of the art, meeting all current building and fire code requirements. We require no other variances and our underground tanks for the storage of gasoline will meet the current requirements from DEC. They will not be grandfathered in any way. They are the current requirements that DEC for underground storage of bulk petroleum requires double wall tanks, monitors in between those walls and monitors throughout the system. Now some other facilities certainly do have that and some may have been required to retrofit to those requirements as well. This will be state of the art brand new facilities in full compliance with DEC's requirements. 

Mr. McKelvey: You say you've been before the Planning Board? 

Mr. Shaw:  Yes, we (inaudible) 

Mr. McKelvey: And did you talk about left hand turns to them? 

Ms. Gennarelli: I'm sorry, Greg, could you use the microphone please?

Mr. Shaw: Oh, I'm sorry. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. Shaw: Yes, we mentioned to them that more than likely when we return, if we were to return back to the Board that we would have a traffic study in hand to explore the left hand turn lane. I even think my client understands that he's going to install that left hand turn lane. It just warrants it pure and simple.

Mr. McKelvey: It just seems with that traffic light at Carter Avenue and then coming left hand up above there you're going to have a problem with traffic. 

Mr. Shaw: That's why we hire a traffic consultant. We've already spoke to Phil Greeley of John Collins Engineering regarding the project and we're going to be delving into in detail assuming that we receive the variance. 

Mr. Manley: Do you have any traffic estimates at all at this point? Any preliminary traffic estimates?

Mr. Shaw: No, none whatsoever. None whatsoever.

Mr. Manley: Would you be able to tell me what Class road Route 9W is? Is it F, D?

Mr. Shaw: Well it's not the road; you give that classification to intersections. O.K.? And I would not be able to tell you what the intersection of Carter and Route 9W is. I just don't know. You know the…I'm sorry; I didn't mean to cut you off.  

Mr. Manley: Well would it be fair to say that the ruling that Mr. Donovan described back in 1961 referenced concerns relative to traffic? Would that be a fair statement to say?

Mr. Shaw: I would say so, yes.

Mr. Manley: Would it also be a fair statement to say then that the traffic in 1961 in the State of New York was certainly a lot less than the traffic today in 2009?

Mr. Shaw: As were there intersections.

Mr. Manley: That would be a concern that I would have would be the impact to traffic what a…you know, what the condition of intersection is with regard to whether it’s a C road, whether it’s a D intersection, F, whatever the other classification and what factors would be put in place to mitigate that to prevent obviously the situation of health, safety, welfare of the individuals that are utilizing that roadway.

Mr. Shaw: I understand that that's what a traffic study does. The first thing you do is you put out traffic count equipment to determine how many cars are traveling in each direction during the peak hours of the morning and afternoon. Based upon the flow of that traffic and the geometry of that intersection it in turn rates that intersection. All right? So it could be a C, D, F, I don't think it's any better than that, better than a C. And then you have your proposed improvements, which would be the left hand turn lane. And after the construction of those proposed improvements how would the traffic then in turn be distributed at that intersection with the goal being to improve it? O.K.? So you can take an intersection that's rated D or F and raise it up to a D or C or B depending upon the improvements that are being installed. That's just a general overview.

Mr. Manley: Right, the only thing is that from my point of view without coming to this Board with that information or having some sort of basis to make your case its very difficult to make a decision without having all of the facts and only having just a very small snippet of…'well, we're going to address that'. I have nothing to show me where we're at now and what potentially what you're going to do and I understand you don't want to invest the money without knowing if you're project is going to go forward but it makes it very difficult sitting in my position to make a decision without having that information. 

Mr. Shaw: I understand your point.

Mr. McKelvey: Especially with the traffic on 9W I mean its…I don't know if you've traveled it? 

Mr. Shaw: Oh, I live in that section of the Town.

Mr. McKelvey: And there's a lot of traffic there.

Mr. Manley: At 5:00 it's like a parking lot. 

Mr. McKelvey: In the morning too.

Chairperson Cardone: It starts at 3 o'clock.

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah. 

Mr. Hughes: Could you describe the left hand traffic turn lanes that you're speaking about? Are these on your property or on 9W? 

Mr. Shaw: The improved…depending upon the width of the right of way, all right? The improvements in a perfect world would be on our property. In the State right of way on our side of the street and if there's not enough room in the State right of way we would in turn give up the necessary frontage on our property to construct the widening of 9W in a northerly direction. In the southerly direction we are now not in front of our property. At that point its going to be functional the width of the right of way and whether you can physically install the extra lane, the tapering extra lane on one side of the street which would probably would be the easterly side or if there's not sufficient right of way it would have to be distributed over the easterly and westerly edge of 9W to accommodate the extra tapering lane. 

Mr. Hughes: Do either of you gentlemen have any inclination about what D.O.T. T.I.F. program is going to do at that intersection in the near future?

Mr. Shaw: That is the a…no, I do not know.

Mr. Hughes: You don't?  

Mr. Shaw: No.

Mr. Cordisco: I do not.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. well it's been put off for a long time and its due to take off in the very near future. I would look into that before I would go anywhere because the last section they are doing now is from First Street to 84 and then the next part of that is going to start at Carter Avenue and go north on 9W specifically and I don't think you have what you are going need there when they get done with that. It's an unusual situation 9W is a Federal Highway. It goes from Fort Lee, New Jersey to Montreal and because of that the State is funded through the Feds on that particular highway. I would look in to where your State D.O.T. right of way is and look for where the Feds have jurisdiction over that same part. When you said to me that you're providing a left hand turn I couldn't imagine where you could be consistent with the N.Y.S. D.O.T. T.I.F. program that's about to be initiated. 

Mr. Manley: The other question would be, the left hand turn light would that be at the light or not at the light? Would it be controlled by a light so that the people could make the left in to the property?

Mr. Shaw: Oh, absolutely, absolutely. There would be modifications to the existing light that would be part of the improvements. O.K.?

Mr. Manley: Because there already is left hand turn lane to go to Carter. 

Mr. Shaw: I believe there is but that would all have to be modified.

Mr. Hughes: So your diagram that shows the somewhat restrictive entrance and exit in both locations on the north and south end of this property are they just little moles or are they real curbs that guide the cars out or is a crap shoot?

Mr. Shaw: They are conventional D.O.T. highway entrances that meet their State specifications that does not reflect the road widening or the left hand turn lane. A substantial amount of money would have to be invested and survey work and design work in order to create the information that you're looking for. We're here tonight before you just for the variance so that's why the information was not presented. 

Mr. Hughes: Again, thank you for answering those questions but I think you need to do a little bit more research on what's going on in that part of the world.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? Yes. Please step up to the microphone and just for record state your name.

Ms. Darrah: My name's Anita Felasaro Darrah. I have lived next door to the property that they want to put a…this project for twenty-seven years and I always have a water problem. I have a well and I have my own septic. I do not have anything with the Town. The amount of traffic there, I was one of the ones that helped implement the light with the D.O.T. I had two thousand signatures. There is not a left hand turn that would be able to come in to your premises. It would only…it comes into my premises, which is my Mom Pa deli. I watch children and I put them on the school bus on a daily basis and the amount of traffic there has tripled over the twenty-seven years that I have lived there. So I feel right now putting another convenience store there would be very hazardous for the amount of accidents that we already have there. You check with the Town of Newburgh Police there constantly at that site between Carter Avenue and myself for accidents even with the light being put in there over ten years ago. And my other concern is, every month no every year I have to have my water sent to the MTBE because of Stewart's which has been… we get along Stewart's and myself with the gas lines could be leaking underground to my water system which is my well. So now if you…if this project goes on next door I'm going to have to worry about the gas going into my well which is only probably 1500 feet to my residence and my deli from this project. And that's about what I have to say.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. The report from the Orange County Department of Planning is Local Determination. Do we have any other questions or comments from the Board?  

Mr. Donovan: If I can, I would like to go back to the traffic issue because that's, you know, competition is certainly not a legitimate objective of zoning. Traffic is and my concern is, you know, you frequently ask me will what we do establish a precedent? And I always tell you whatever you do establishes a precedent. I would be more concerned in this instance if you made any decision granted the variance or denied the variance without at least some baseline information on traffic. I can understand where you are in the process and of may not want to spend the money that's required to do a full blown traffic study. This seems to be what this provision of the Code is resting upon and I think the Board needs to have some basis to render a decision either for or against and you know, you may have another application come down the road because these things typically nothing happens for twenty years and then you get two of them in six months. But the way you need to handle this is if that's the objective of the Code then we need to have something to bolster and to support whatever decision you may make.  

Mr. Manley: Would the applicant be willing to put forth a escrow to allow the Zoning Board to contact more than likely probably the Planning Board's traffic consultant and ask them to, you know, do the necessary reviews so that we would have additional information to base our decision?

Mr. Cordisco: I think if I could make a suggestion, Mr. Manley? I think what we would prefer to do would be to move forward with using Phil Greeley to prepare a traffic report which then of course the Town would have at its option to have Creighton Manning review that and see whether or not they concur in its findings and if that's the case I believe that we can do that and I would suggest that perhaps we hold this matter over so that we could submit that for a future meeting. So you could have some basis to evaluate this particular traffic issue. 

Mr. Manley: There would be no objection then to if the Board left the Public Hearing open so that if the residents wished to add any further comments after that traffic study came out?

Mr. Cordisco: I think its proper.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have any objection about the input from NYS D.O.T and what they may have conjured up in information and studies?

Mr. Cordisco: I don't. I mean of course…

Mr. Hughes: O.K. because I'm not clear on if it was answered or not and maybe it was and I didn't catch it but your applicant is making this application with the contingent. They don't own the property at present?

Mr. Cordisco: That's correct.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I wanted to make sure that I knew what I was talking about there. And for Mr. Shaw, I know you're the engineer on this, the water situation there is horrendous you need to take a good look at that and find out from your neighbors all the way around there and across the street how little it takes to send that thing to the moon. There's a very serious situation there. There's hydrostatic pressures, there's things that are part of the headwaters that feed a stream known as Jew's Creek that goes north. It runs through the drive-in just a little bit up the street. There's all sorts of other problems in there with hotels and motels with subsurface systems in that particular area and there are a lot of residential wells in that immediate area that will be affected by this project. I have nothing else. Thank you.  

Mr. Manley: Mr. Donovan, would we want to…the Planning Board is lead agency?

Mr. Donovan: Well what the Planning Board has asked us to do because of where this is in the process is to conduct our own uncoordinated SEQRA review.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: And I would suggest that you not do anything in that regard this evening. If it's an uncoordinated review we don't need to declare our intent to be lead agency. I would suggest that you hold it over to the January meeting when information is presented by the applicant that information can be reviewed by our traffic consultant and we can see where we stand in January. 

Mr. Hughes: Are we eligible to review traffic studies that have already been done in that area from other projects so that the applicant doesn't have to spend a ton of money?

Mr. Donovan: Well let me rephrase the question. It would be prudent for them to review those studies and for us as well and then there going to…I'm sure will bolster whatever they submit to us but we're not simply eligible it would be wise for both side to do that.

Mr. Hughes: If my memory serves me right Mr. Shaw has done projects in the proximity there?

Mr. Shaw: And more than likely the traffic studies you're referring to were done there were done by Phil Greeley of John Collins Engineering. He does…

Ms. Gennarelli: Greg, I'm sorry, it's just not picking up…

Mr. Shaw: He pretty much does the traffic studies in the Town of Newburgh on behalf of the applicants to the Planning Board with Creighton Manning being the review consultant for the Planning Board. So I think he would be privy to that information that you referring to.

Mr. Cordisco: And what we're talking about is basically accelerating that process. We were going to have to go through that anyway before the Planning Board and I can understand that this Board wants to see that information now. So I think what we'll do is we'll ask Phil to step up his efforts in that regard and as soon as we can we'll submit that information to you. And having knowledge of any existing traffic studies is certainly, as Mr. Shaw said, you know, Phil is the go to guy for that very reason but we also do our own in terms of our own impacts so that we're evaluating our impacts rather than just piggybacking onto somebody else.

Ms. Eaton: You mentioned QuickChek, weren't they interested in a site a little bit to the north of this?

Mr. Cordisco: When I mentioned QuickChek I also said that we don't have a specific tenant…

Ms. Eaton: Yes, you did say that.     

Mr. Cordisco: …but that…that that's the particular design that we're heading towards. 

Mr. Hughes: What about food prep inside this 8300 sq. ft. building that you're talking about? Will there be some sort of combination of Subway's or people of that nature that may have a franchise inside as well?

Mr. Cordisco: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: So now you're talking about water and sewer. I think you're going to be disappointed when you find out what's in the ground there. Enough said. You know what you need to do for your work.

Mr. Shaw: Well with respect to the water we're tying into the Town system so that takes that off the table.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, but where do you plug it into? Where does it go when it leave the drain?

Mr. Shaw: Well now we're talking about the wastewater.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Shaw: And with them preparing food inside the building we're going to need both D.E.C approval and a Food Service Permit from the Health Department so they will make sure that the requirements of the State are adhered to.

Mr. Hughes: Subsurface or a package plant?

Mr. Shaw: We haven't decided yet, one or the other.

Mr. McKelvey: I think there's a lot of questions.

Mr. Cordisco: It has to go somewhere and… 

Mr. Hughes: Well no, believe me I know about that stuff.

Mr. Cordisco: Right.

Mr. McKelvey: There's a lot of questions, so.

Mr. Hughes: I have a well too. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion to hold the Public Hearing open? 

Mr. Hughes: So moved. 

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Mr. Donovan: And that's to a date certain, which would be our meeting in January…

Ms. Gennarelli: January 28th.

Mr. Donovan: January 28th and for anyone here from the public that's interested you will not get another notice. You need to just remember to come on January 28th if you're interested in this application. They need to vote. I'm sorry I interrupted you. 

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Mr. Cordisco: Thank you all very much.

Chairperson Cardone: This will be held open until January the 28th. 

Mr. Donovan: See you next year.

Mr. Cordisco: Thank you again. It's not so far away. 

Mr. Donovan: That's correct.                  (Time Noted – 7:46 PM) 
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DANIEL O'ROURKE



36 WINDWOOD DRIVE, NBGH







(91-4-10) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances side yards setbacks, the lot building coverage and the lot surface coverage to keep a prior built addition and the rear yard setback and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yards setbacks to keep a prior built covered rear deck on the residence.  

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Daniel O'Rourke.                

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday December 9th and The Sentinel on Friday, December 11th. The applicant sent out thirty-one registered letters, thirty were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Mr. O'Rourke: My name is Dan O'Rourke; I have a request for two variances. O.K.? One a back porch on my house, which is not far enough from the back. He called it setbacks I'm not sure. And the other is for a den which is on the left side of my house which is close to the property line probably about 5-feet. I'm looking for a variance on those two items.

Mr. McKelvey: You built these…every building with a Permit?

Mr. O'Rourke: No. These were built many years ago probably, one was built four years ago and the other one twenty years ago and so they've been around for a long time.

Ms. Drake: Did you build them both?

Mr. O'Rourke: I beg your pardon?

Ms. Drake: Did you build both of them?

Mr. O'Rourke: I had them partially constructed by a contractor.

Ms. Drake: Right, but it was you…you had them constructed?

Mr. O'Rourke: Yes I did. Yes. 

Ms. Drake: This came to light because the house is for sale now?

Mr. O'Rourke: Yes, correct.

Mr. Donovan: I'm sorry; I was still making notes about the last application. Are we just talking about the decks?

Mr. O'Rourke: Well actually there are two requests. One is for the deck on the rear of the house and the other for a den on the side of the house going towards Morrisey's driveway.

Mr. Donovan: I just want to know what happened to the sheds. 

Mr. O'Rourke: To the what? 

Mr. Donovan: To the sheds.

Mr. O'Rourke: Oh, there's no sheds…gone.

Mr. Donovan: Thank you.

Mr. O'Rourke: You're welcome. 

Mr. Donovan: I don't visit the property so.

Ms. Drake: Does anybody know if the building coverage and lot surface area calculations were done with or without the sheds?

Mr. Donovan: When did you remove the sheds?

Mr. O'Rourke: Today. 

Ms. Drake: I guess they were done with the sheds.

Mr. Donovan: Now Mike you've have been so proficient at that.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, you have your assignment Mike.

Mr. Maher: Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: He's our statistician.

Mr. Maher: It doesn't have that. All it has is coverage there.

Mr. McKelvey: You'll want to know the size of the sheds. What was it? The sheds.

Mr. Maher: Yeah.

Chairperson Cardone: What was the size of the shed? 

Mr. O'Rourke: What was the size of the sheds?

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah.

Mr. McKelvey: About 22 ft. wide by about 8 ft. deep.

Mr. Donovan: Someone has written on mine it looks like the small one is 64 square and the other one is 256 ft.?

Mr. O'Rourke: Well one is not a shed one is a sandbox. That was a misinterpretation. O.K.?

Mr. Maher: Is the sandbox still there?

Mr. O'Rourke: Oh, the sandbox is out there, yeah. 

Mr. Maher: So that’s the basically 256 taken off there. That being said…

Mr. Hughes: And there's a third of an acre there, 100 x 125, so that's 33 x 40,000.

Mr. McKelvey: Plus we went from R-3 to R-1.

Mr. Maher: Beg your pardon?

Mr. McKelvey: It went from R-3 to R-1. 

Chairperson Cardone: At the time they were built it was R-3.

Mr. McKelvey: Right, yes.

Mr. Maher: So far the lot surface coverage is down to roughly 20.1%. So you're just about there on the lot surface coverage. And on the lot building coverage you're going to be, you're going to be in the 16% range versus 19.5. 

Mr. McKelvey: What was the lot surface?

Mr. Maher: Lot, I'm sorry…16% versus 10%. Right. So probably 6 ½ % on the building and then roughly equaled on the a…maxed out on surface coverage at 20.1. 

Ms. Drake: Thank you Mike. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board?  Any questions or comments from the public? Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Mr. McKelvey: So moved. 

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. O'Rourke: Are we done?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes we are.

Mr. Donovan: Well for the Public Hearing is closed. You didn't get…no decision were made on your request yet.

Mr. O'Rourke: Well, no not yet, no, all right.

Chairperson Cardone: No. Thank you.

Mr. O'Rourke: Thank you now.

(Time Noted – 7:53 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 22, 2009      (Resumption for decision: 8:21PM) 



DANIEL O'ROURKE



36 WINDWOOD DRIVE, NBGH







(91-4-10) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances side yards setbacks, the lot building coverage and the lot surface coverage to keep a prior built addition and the rear yard setback and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yards setbacks to keep a prior built covered rear deck on the residence.  

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Daniel O'Rourke, 36 Windwood Drive, seeking area variances side yards setbacks, the lot building coverage and the lot surface coverage to keep a prior built addition and the rear yard setback and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yards setbacks to keep a prior built covered rear deck on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. McKelvey: There were no neighbors here for this meeting. So I guess that they're happy.

Ms. Drake: The sheds were already removed or the one shed which reduced the degree of the lot surface area and the building coverage so it's not as large a variance.

Mr. Maher: Yeah, just so I can clarify for the record. It actually would be 17.5% on the lot building coverage versus the 16 guesstimate.

Chairperson Cardone: Close.

Mr. Hughes: I'll move it for approval.

Mr. McKelvey: I'll second it.

Mr. Manley: Just in addition, this used to be an R-3 zone so when it was initially built it was built with R-3 requirements since its changed to R-1 its increased the degree of non-conformity.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY






DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.              

 (Time Noted – 8:23 PM)
ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 22, 2009             (Time Noted – 7:53 PM) 



FAYE McINTOSH



393 FOSTERTOWN ROAD, NBGH







(17-1-43) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a side sunroom on the residence.   

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Faye McIntosh.               

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday December 9th and The Sentinel on Friday, December 11th. The applicant sent out twenty-six registered letters, twenty-six were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Chairperson Cardone: For the record identify yourself.

Ms. McIntosh: I'm Faye McIntosh and I'm requesting an 8-ft setback from the road.

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me. Could you just get a little closer to the mic? Thank you.

Ms. McIntosh: For a sunroom on the side of my house.

Mr. McKelvey: A three-season sunroom?

Ms. McIntosh: Yeah, it was a screen porch but it got a fancy name somewhere in the closed in porch.

Mr. McKelvey: There's no heat in it?

Ms. McIntosh: No. 

Chairperson Cardone: And this would not bring you any closer to the road than the house currently is?

Ms. McIntosh: No, it's actually further away from the house.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board?  Any questions or comments from the public?  

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: Hold on just a moment.

Ms. Drake: I'm sorry.

Chairperson Cardone: I need to read the report from the Orange County Department of Planning, which is Local Determination.

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 7:55 PM)

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 22, 2009         (Resumption for decision: 8:23 PM) 



FAYE McINTOSH



393 FOSTERTOWN ROAD, NBGH







(17-1-43) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a side sunroom on the residence.   

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Faye McIntosh, 393 Fostertown Road, seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a side sunroom on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. McKelvey: It's not a change in the setback from what it is now. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval?

Mr. Manley: I would so move.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY






DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.              

 (Time Noted – 8:24 PM)
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IRVAN BOUCHER



13 HY-VUE DRIVE, NBGH







(42-5-12) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for an accessory structure shall be in a side or rear yard to build a shed in a front yard.  

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Irvan Boucher.               

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday December 9th and The Sentinel on Friday, December 11th. The applicant sent out twenty-four registered letters, twenty-four were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Just for the record identify yourself. 

Mr. Boucher: Irvan Boucher I would like to build a shed in my rear yard, which by definition is also my second front yard. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right. So this is another one of those two front yards but it's clearly in the rear yard. Any questions or comments from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public?

Mr. McKelvey: It's the only reason he's here is for the two front yards.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Before proceeding the Board will take a short adjournment to confer with counsel regarding legal questions raised by tonight's applications. I would ask you in the interest of time if you could wait out in the hallway and we will call you in very shortly.

(Time Noted – 7:56 PM)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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IRVAN BOUCHER



13 HY-VUE DRIVE, NBGH







(42-5-12) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for an accessory structure shall be in a side or rear yard to build a shed in a front yard.  

Chairperson Cardone: On the next application, Irvan Boucher, 13 Hy-Vue Drive seeking an area variance for an accessory structure shall be in a side or rear yard to build a shed in a front yard. And also the Orange County Department of Planning report was Local Determination. And this is a Type II Action under SEQRA. 

Mr. McKelvey: The only reason he is here is because of the two front yards. I'll make a motion we approve.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY






DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.              

 (Time Noted – 8:25 PM)
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DOCUWARE CORPORATION/

356 MEADOW AVENUE, NBGH

  MEADOW HILL REALTY LLC.

(60-3-51.1) IB ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the total signage allowed to erect a new sign on the building.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our next application DocuWare Corporation, 356 Meadow Avenue in Newburgh. We had a question at the last meeting about variances, prior variances that may have been given for signage at that site. Our Building Department was unable to locate any evidence of any prior variances. The applicant is here this evening. Have you been able to locate any variances that have been given for that site in the past?

Mr. Schloemer: Greg Schloemer from DocuWare Corporation and no we have not been able to locate any variance.

Mr. Axelrod: If I may?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Axelrod: My name is Alan Axelrod; I'm one of the members of Meadow Hill Realty, LLC. the owner's of the property. We purchased the property in…we closed in March of 1999. I think the building was built in the mid '80s, the two buildings. Whatever tenants have gone in there we've sent to the Building Inspector's office to make sure they got C.O.'s. We were not aware that there was any issue. There were signs on all the different tenants in the strip mall and in fact, some of them have been replaced. There are signs on top of each building, non of which are neon, I was not aware until I spoke with Mr. Canfield…actually Mr. Schloemer called me after the last meeting and then I spoke to Mr. Canfield who said he was going to do some research and he called me about a week or so ago and said that they didn't find any variances so I would guess that we need to…well I'm not sure, because Mr. Schloemer indicated that he thought that the application that was for a variance for everything that's already there, that has been there well since we've been there so we'll do whatever is required. Obviously the strip mall has signs on top of each of the tenants none of them are neon I don't believe. We don't let any of them in. On the office building we had put up a sign that I…on the side of the building facing 300. We're behind Citizens Bank and Mr. Schloemer had requested that they put a sign, a similar sign saying DocuWare on that same place and I said its fine with me just make sure you just get all the proper Permits. And that's what I think started this…this thing going. We were aware that we were apparently in violation and we'll do whatever is necessary unless you consider this a variance application…

Mr. Donovan: Alan, what happens is the Building Department did a summary for us and they say the amount of signage you have depends upon your road frontage. So the maximum the tell us is 272-1 / 2 sq.ft. Then they measured out the existing as 636 sq.ft. with an extra 12 sq.ft. proposed by these folks who got caught into this web for going… The question was how did we get from 272-1 / 2 to 636 because that's the bigger jump and that’s 138% variance. But I want to be clear is, are you telling us tonight that, to your knowledge, all of the folks who are your tenants got Permits for their signs? 

Mr. Axelrod: No, no I just know they got Permits they got C.O.'s. O.K.? The signs were just replaced prior signs. There were signs, there were areas for signs some of which for example, Itzmi Japanese Restaurant who went there after we bought the property. Prior to that there was a pizza place called Tony's Pizza and he vacated shortly before we bought the building. So they just replaced that sign. There may have been…when we bought this place Freihofer's was in there where Health Quest was Medicus. I'm just trying to remember…there was one other tenant it escapes me at the moment. But there were signs, there were areas above the door but were not filled in because some of the occupants…some of the spaces were empty. The office building was a different situation. We didn't have any. We have a…outside there is a board with plaques and everything and then we put a sign up on the side, which I'm pretty sure we went through the Building Inspector's Office. I don't know that we needed a variance at that point or actually we needed a variance.

Mr. Manley: Well actually I'm a little more confused that I was before because my understanding was that the only building was the one that Mr. Axelrod's office was in. I never realized that that other piece of property was also part of this.

Mr. Axelrod: It's all one parcel the strip mall where Health Quest is or Medicus and the office is one piece. My guess is years ago they probably cut out the piece where Citizen's Bank was out of that.

Mr. Manley: So it's L-shaped.

Mr. Axelrod: That's right. It's well…

Mr. Manley: Kind of.  

Mr. Axelrod: Well, you know, its one parcel. The strip mall and our office building is one parcel. So the reason why there's so much square footage is because of all the signage on top of the tenants in the strip mall.

Mr. Manley: Right, there's signs above their offices and as well as the sign that's by the road.

Mr. Axelrod: O.K. Yeah, well right, right.

Mr. Manley: Because that will count as well. 

Mr. Axelrod: O.K. and those were all there when we purchased…some of them were empty because the strip mall was not even half full when we purchased it but yeah that's all one parcel so this is a combination of the two.

Mr. Hughes: To simplify, Alan, if we had the paper where you got to the point to where you are now would be easy to fill. You're only looking for 14 more feet.

Mr. Axelrod: Right, I understand.

Mr. Hughes: Now you've got from 272 to 636 or what ever it was…

Mr. Axelrod: We never got to 272 apparently. 

Mr. Hughes:  But now we have no way to know how we got to that.

Mr. Axelrod: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: So now we've got a whole different situation cooking here.

Mr. Axelrod: I have no idea as between when the building was built and when we bought it which and again I'm not sure I think it was built in the mid to late '80's. There were tenants there when we bought it upstairs, Wellcare was in there, the Bank of America had office downstairs where our offices are now, Dr. Pete was in the back but I don't know anything about the history of it beforehand.

Mr. Maher: Let me ask you one question. Is the New York Mattress…?

Mr. Axelrod: I'm sorry?

Mr. Maher: Is New York Mattress in the strip mall? Is that currently occupied?

Mr. Axelrod: No. We've been looking for…but if you'd like to rent it we can make a deal.

Mr. Maher: Well my reason for asking is because that's really a third of your entire signage on your property so, you know, obviously…

Mr. Hughes: But they're all over.

Mr. Maher: Right.

Mr. Hughes: (Inaudible) as its going along.

Mr. Maher: But I'm just saying, you know, in essence obviously it’s a tremendous variance requesting you know, more than double, 136% of what you have allowed. You know if that's not occupied at this time and in fact a smaller sign may be suitable you may be able to reduce your overall need for signage. Obviously that being a third of your entire signage uses on your entire parcel is a huge part of it so that may be something you want to look at if in fact the Board is inclined to grant it.

Mr. Axelrod: We've had a couple of people look. We actually have it listed with Mansfield Commercial Real Estate from Goshen and she's had some people look at it but it's been empty now for I think over a year.

Mr. Hughes: Is it possible that your tenant could live with a combination of a sign on the marquees and a reduction of what's on the building they've requested for at present because we have no way to jump from that 630 whatever?

Mr. Donovan: Well I think what my recommendation would be, it's not what you have to do because you don't have to follow my advice but I think you need to bridge the gap if you're inclined to grant the variance from 272-1 / 2 to what did they say 648, up to 650 just choosing a number to cover it because otherwise we're going to have continuing variances even if these folks, Alan takes the sign down, he gets a tenant he's going to come back for another variance. 

Mr. Maher: Well I mean that maybe not as big as his current sign is on that one side of the building that was my only concern right now.

Mr. Hughes: But where did the segmentation leave us when the bread place is now rented and the guy wants 650 and another guy wants 550 and another guy wants 490. We don't want Alan running back and forth here going crazy. I think that we should maybe better take a look at the whole complex.

Mr. Axelrod: Yeah, I don't think…we certainly would have problem in removing the New York Mattress. In fact they were supposed to remove it when they left and they never did and that would reduce but you know obviously the signs on top of Health Quest and Itzmi that would be a major problem if we told them they had to take it down. That's a retail…

Mr. Hughes: Well what I think moreover is if you reduced them all in a uniform fashion now then you won't be in this pickle again for your next tenants. 

Ms. Eaton: Aren't there other vacancies in that building also?   

Mr. Axelrod: We…in the strip mall we only have that vacancy but we have two tenants that leases are up in the next two or three months and they will be leaving and we're looking for tenants. And then in the office building we have, we have three floors. The bottom floor is totally occupied. We occupy the whole bottom floor. After the first floor there's 3000 sq. ft. available and then the top floor DocuWare used to split it with Chazen and DocuWare took some of their space and there's Pyramid Brokerage. They are commercial realtors. They are upstairs. So there is 3000 sq. ft. available in the office building and there's one presently available and two more about to become available in the strip mall.

Mr. McKelvey: Suppose you get tenants in this office building and they want to put signs up on the side?

Mr. Axelrod: We're not going to…that's going to be part of the negotiation; we're going to tell them no more signs.

Mr. McKelvey: Well I'm just trying to prevent you from coming back.

Mr. Axelrod: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: That's why I suggested a partial on the marquees and on the building where you reduced the one on the building and a bigger one on the marquee where you might draw more attention that way. The building is back far enough from the road where the combination of the two signs might be better for your service.

Mr. Axelrod: I think more problematic is the strip mall very frankly, in terms of a…

Mr. Hughes: But that's all one parcel and you're limited to…

Mr. Axelrod: Yes, I understand that now.

Mr. Hughes: …the formula on both sides, the formula for all the signs inclusive. So you don't want to put yourself out of business by having one big sign on one tenant and then not be able to do anything again. 

Mr. Manley: I'm inclined to just say, give the applicant…not the applicant but Mr. Axelrod's holding company that holds the building the 650 sq. ft. and then let them divi up however they want as long as they stay within the 650 sq. ft. that the Zoning Board allots. If he wants to give 100 to a new mattress company that comes in then he can give 100 or if he says, well hey new mattress company you're only going to get 75 sq. ft. and then he can negotiate with his, you know, leaseholders how much signage they have.

Mr. McKelvey: He would have to stick to the 650.

Mr. Manley: Right.

Mr. Axelrod: What is there presently?

Mr. Donovan: The Building Department calculates 636 sq. ft. They say these folks are 12, I think you said you were 13-1 / 2 when you came here last time.

Mr. Schloemer: Well honestly I don't recall what I…

Mr. Donovan: That's a good answer. Were you coached?  

Mr. McKelvey: Didn't he say he wanted to go to 648?

Mr. Donovan: Yeah, that's what we did. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Donovan: I had written out 13-1 / 2 but regardless.

Mr. Manley: Well 650 would pretty much give them enough to what they need.

Mr. Hughes: But now if we recalculate the whole site and we know what the whole square footage for the whole site is then we can appropriate individually what those storefronts might be able to carry.

Mr. Manley: But why do we have to do that?

Chairperson Cardone: We don't have to do that, that's up to him.

Ms. Drake: Right.

Mr. McKelvey: We don't have to do that. He has to do it.

Mr. Axelrod: Am I correct in my understanding that if they granted 650 what we have there now plus what they're requesting would be covered?

Chairperson Cardone: It would be covered.

Mr. Axelrod: It would cover everything and then we would obviously allocate it for the future. We are obviously going to take that New York Mattress, they don't…

Mr. McKelvey: That will cut you back then.

Mr. Axelrod: Pardon me?

Mr. McKelvey: That will cut you back quite a bit.

Mr. Axelrod: Yeah and that will give us, you know…

Mr. Manley: Well what Mr. Maher said that's a third of your square footage, you're talking probably somewhere around 200 square feet, right?

Mr. Maher: 210, actually, yes.

Mr. Manley: Would be that big mattress sign that's on there so if you took that down you'd have like 210 sq. ft. that you have to work with. So if you only put back 100, well now you have 110 in reserve that you can do whatever you want with it.

Mr. Axelrod: So that then the 650 were granted what we had in now would allow them to add the sign they wanted and then we'd be covered then.

Mr. Donovan: With two square feet to spare.

Mr. Axelrod: Pardon me?

Mr. Donovan: With two square feet to spare.

Mr. Axelrod: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: But then what do you do about your 3000 sq. ft. in that same building for that tenant.

Ms. Drake: That's for him to work out. 

Mr. Axelrod: Yeah. That's for us.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I just don't want you to paint yourself in a corner. 

Mr. Donovan: Well you have…I assume there's a sign there for whoever is out?

Mr. Axelrod: No, because…there isn't because we used part that was part of ours…we moved that part of the office to another location so there was only a sign for us there. 

Mr. Donovan: O.K. 

Mr. Axelrod: But the only sign would be the placard in the front. We're not going to let anybody else…

Mr. Donovan: O.K. 

Ms. Eaton: What's on your front door? Just your name?

Mr. Axelrod: No, yeah…

Mr. Donovan: Only Alan Axelrod, none of his other partners get to be on that door.

Mr. Axelrod: Yeah, I mean there's some things on the windows in terms of…Pay Check just went in but they don't have signs out or on top even but they may have placards out on the marquees.

Ms. Eaton: I don't think what they're asking for on the side of the building is that extensive between the two signs.

Mr. Donovan: Well we've run into the problem before with others, the whole idea of the formula based upon the road frontage has kind of proved unworkable.

Mr. Axelrod: The one thing that we've been very careful because I had one tenant a few years ago that didn't take it because he wanted to put a neon sign and I said absolutely not. Because that I can see that being a danger, someone is driving 300 and that…plus it looks honky tonk but none of the signs are neon. They're just basically…I'm talking; again I'm referring to the strip mall. We actually I think may have room on the marquees of the office building. One of the…somebody that retired a few years ago, I think, his sign may still be up there. I'm not sure.

Mr. McKelvey: On the mattress sign now, on the one on the side of the building does that got writing on it?   

Mr. Axelrod: Does what?

Mr. McKelvey: Does that have writing on that mattress does it cover around two sides?

Mr. Axelrod: I think it's just on the front. I think. 

Mr. McKelvey: (Inaudible)

Mr. Axelrod: If that's on the side too so we can…we can take that down we'll be in good shape. That's a very good suggestion. 

Mr. Manley: Well I would make a motion that we grant 650 sq. ft.

Mr. Donovan: Total?

Mr. Manley: Total.

Chairperson Cardone: Total.

Mr. Manley: Total for signage.

Ms. Drake: I'll second that motion. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. Thank you.

Mr. Axelrod: Thank you. 
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Chairperson Cardone: We have a letter from Kathie Gooler, 32 Mill Street asking for the Zoning Board to grant an extension of a variance for one additional six-month period dated June 25, 2009 filed July 27, 2009. Everyone has a copy of that in their possession?

Mr. McKelvey: They're entitled to one six-month extension. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to that effect?

Mr. Manley: So moved.

Mr. McKelvey: Second. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. 

(Time Noted – 8:43 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 22, 2009

END OF MEETING                                           (Time Noted – 8:43 PM)

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. I know that everyone has the minutes in their possession but I don't know that everyone has had a chance to actually read them. So I think we'll hold off voting until next month on the minutes from the last meeting. 

Mr. Manley: Thanks.

Ms. Drake: I appreciate that.

Chairperson Cardone: Is there anything else? 

Mr. Hughes: Did I mention Bah Humbug yet?

Chairperson Cardone: No, but Merry Christmas.

Merry Christmas to and from all and a Happy New Year. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to close the meeting?

Mr. Maher: I'll make a motion.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor say Aye?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone:  The motion is carried. The meeting is adjourned.
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